ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
May 8, 2003
3:14 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Mary Kapsner

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senat or Fred Dyson

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

University of Al aska, Board of Regents

Davi d Parks - Anchorage
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 157( HES)

"An Act relating to inpatient psychiatric services for persons
who are under 21 years of age and are either eligible for
medi cal assistance or are in the custody of the Departnent of
Heal th and Soci al Services."

- MOVED CSSB 157(HES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 292

"An Act relating to information and services available to
pregnant wonen and ot her persons; and ensuring inforned consent
before an abortion nmay be performed, except in cases of nedica
enmer gency. "

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- May 8, 2003



- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: SB 157

SHORT TI TLE: | NPATI ENT PSYCHI ATRI C SERVI CES
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) GREEN

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 26/ 03 0592 (S READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 03 0592 (S HES, FIN

04/ 09/ 03 (S HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

04/ 09/ 03 (S Moved CSSB 157(HES) Qut of
Comm ttee

04/ 09/ 03 (S M NUTE( HES)

04/ 10/ 03 0781 (S HES RPT CS 3DP 2NR SAME TI TLE

04/ 10/ 03 0781 (S DP: DYSON, GREEN, W LKEN;

04/ 10/ 03 0781 (S NR. GUESS, DAVI S

04/ 10/ 03 0781 (S FN1: ZERQ( HSS)

04/ 25/ 03 0966 (S FIN RPT CS(HES) 5DP 2NR

04/ 25/ 03 0967 (S DP: GREEN, W LKEN, TAYLCR,
BUNDE,

04/ 25/ 03 0967 (S STEVENS B; NR HOFFMAN, OLSON

04/ 25/ 03 0967 (S FN1: ZERQ( HSS)

04/ 25/ 03 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE
532

04/ 25/ 03 (S Moved Qut of Conmittee

04/ 25/ 03 (S M NUTE( FI N)

04/ 29/ 03 1028 (S RULES TO CALENDAR 4/ 29/ 2003

04/ 29/ 03 1028 (S READ THE SECOND TI ME

04/ 29/ 03 1028 (S HES CS ADOPTED UNAN CONSENT

04/ 29/ 03 1028 (S ADVANCED TO THI RD READI NG
4/ 30 CALENDAR

04/ 30/ 03 1051 (S READ THE THI RD TI ME CSSB
157( HES)

04/ 30/ 03 1052 (S PASSED Y17 N E1 A2

04/ 30/ 03 1059 (S TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 30/ 03 1059 (S VERSI ON:  CSSB 157( HES)

05/ 01/ 03 1228 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

05/ 01/ 03 1228 (H HES, FIN

05/ 08/ 03 (H HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 292
SHORT TI TLE: ABORTI ON: | NFORVED CONSENT; | NFORVATI ON
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) DAHLSTROM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- May 8, 2003



Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

04/ 30/ 03 1202 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
04/ 30/ 03 1202 (H HES, JUD
05/ 06/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
05/ 06/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( HES)
05/ 08/ 03 (H HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR LYDA GREEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of SB 157, explai ned the purpose
of the bill and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

KATHY CRONEN, Regi onal Vice President

Uni versal Health Services and

North Star Behavioral Health System

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 157 and answered
guestions fromcomrttee nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE NANCY DAHLSTROM

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 292, spoke to the
anendnents of the bill and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

JOHN SHERWOOD, Unit Manager

Di vision of Medical Assistance

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on HB 292 and responded to
questions fromthe commttee.

MYRNA GARDNER

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 292, and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

BOB JOHNSON, M D.

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified via teleconference in opposition
to HB 292.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- May 8, 2003



GENENEI VA PEARSON

Kodi ak, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified via teleconference in opposition
to HB 292.

KAREN VOSBURGH, Executive Director

Al aska Right to Life

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified via teleconference in support of
HB 292.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-41, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON called the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:14 p.m
Representatives WIlson, Gatto, Seaton, and G ssna were present
at the call to order. Representative WIf arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG

University of Al aska, Board of Regents

Nunmber 0086

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
the confirmation hearing for David Parks, Appointee to the
University of Al aska Board of Regents. She told the commttee
that M. Parks was sel ected by the student body and appoi nted by
the governor to fill the student seat on the Board of Regents.
Unfortunately, M. Parks is in Spain until My 24 and is not
available to be interviewed by the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee. Chair WIson pointed out
that the nenbers have his resume in their packets. The
University of Alaska has asked the committee to approve M.
Parks and forward his nanme to the joint session for
confirmation. Wendy Rednan is available from the university to
answer any questions the nmenbers m ght have. Chair WIlson told
the commttee that the conmttee packet includes a letter from
Ms. Redman, and information about student representatives

sel ecti on process.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that M. Parks' resune is very
inpressive and that the process in selecting the student
representative | ooks fair.

Number 0142

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON nmade a notion to advance the confirmation
of David Parks, Appointee to the University of Al aska Board of
Regents, to the joint session for consideration. There being no
obj ection, the confirmation of David Parks was advanced.

SB 157-1 NPATI ENT PSYCHI ATRI C SERVI CES

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 157(HES), "An Act relating to inpatient
psychiatric services for persons who are under 21 years of age
and are either eligible for nedical assistance or are in the
custody of the Departnent of Health and Social Services."

Nunber 0243

SENATOR LYDA GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of SB
157, explained the purpose of the bill and answered questions
from the nenbers. She told the commttee that SB 157 addresses
the need and concern about psychiatric facilities for juveniles.
Too many juveniles need services at psychiatric facilities, and
currently there is a tendency to send these children out of
state. Senator Geen said it is her desire to place greater
enphasis on determning if there is a place in state for these
students where they can remain closer to their honmes and
parents, and allow them to reassimlate into the comunity when
the tinme cones. Having treatnent in state would allow for
assistance to the famlies and other auxiliary needs that m ght
be required when a child requires psychiatric services.

SENATOR GREEN pointed out the key provisions on the sponsor
statenment, which says that the Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services wll not grant assistance or pay for inpatient
psychiatric care for children under the age of 21 who are pl aced
in an out-of-state facility wunless adequate services are
unavai lable in the state. The departnent will evaluate the
types of services available in state and subsequently transfer
these students back to Alaska when a room becones avail able,
unless the transfer would be detrinmental to the student's
heal th, therapeutic relationship, or clinical needs. This bil
woul d al so encourage those who provide these services to create
| ocal facilities so these kids can stay at hone.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- May 8, 2003



Number 0410

SENATOR GREEN told the conmttee that the bill identifies two
cl asses of individuals. Section 1 primarily deals with Medicaid
recipients "in custody and non-custody." Sections 2 and 3 dea

with kids who are in state custody. For a child is who is on
Medicaid there is one standard, and for a child who is in the

custody of the state there is another standard. She said she
believes that the review process should be consistent. State
regulation currently nmandates the review process and sets up a
review team It is a fairly rigorous system and a variety of
people are required to exam ne, review, and determne what is in
the best interest of the child. It is not an arbitrary
deci si on. Nor should it be. There are nmany steps that are

taken before a child is determned to be institution bound.
Some of these include foster care, special care, nedical
treatnent, and group therapy. There are many steps, including
assistance for the famly and the child, to work through before
institutionalization is determ ned necessary. These provisions
are part of the legislation.

Number 0508

CHAIR WLSON comrented that the state has already gone through
sever al steps and that those options have already been
i npl enented before this point [institutionalization] is reached.

SENATOR GREEN replied that there is an inpatient disciplinary
team that would parallel, for exanple, an individual education

program (IEP) that is designed for student education. They
review and determ ne what is needed, what nust be done, and what
cannot be allowed to happen. The team would assist in

determ ning what is the best treatnment for that child.

Number 0576

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA commented that this bill addresses the
nunbers of youth who have been sent out of state relatively
recently, as in the last ten years. She asked whether the

Al aska Youth Initiative (AYl) programrelates to any of this.
Nunmber 0626

SENATOR CGREEN responded that AYl is an in-state option.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA comrented that AYl was historically an
extraordinarily successful in-state option and it is tragic that
it is not available. She said she is concerned about the
| anguage in the fiscal note [under Analysis] where it says that
"this bill addresses the perception that our nental health and
residential treatnent service systemrelies too heavily on out-
of -state placenent”. Representative Cissna said that those who
have been deeply involved in the issue concerning kids' suddenly
being transferred out-of-state do not share the perception that
it is a fact. She asked Senator Green to comrent on this point.

Number 0684

SENATOR GREEN replied that she could not speak to the fisca
note or the |anguage, but she said that there has been an
i ncredi ble increase, probably an anonmaly, since the advent of
Denali Ki dCare. Children are being transferred outside of
Alaska without the interdisciplinary team focused as fully as
woul d be desired.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA asked if this is being for paid by
Medi cai d funds.

SENATOR GREEN responded that is correct. Medicaid funding needs
to be tightened up as well. This legislation will determ ne the
appropriate way of handling these issues.

SENATOR GREEN noted that Representative Seaton was |eaving the
hearing and before he went she wanted to address a question that

he asked her staff about this |egislation. She told the
commttee that Medicaid determnes how nmuch will be paid for
treat ment. If a request is made for sonething that is nore

expensive, for exanple, treatnent that requires that the student
stay here versus sending the student out of state, Medicaid
determ nes the rate. Senator Geen reiterated that Al aska does
not have any control over the rate.

Number 0804

KATHY CRONEN, Regional Vice President, Universal Health Services
(UHS), testified in support of SB 157, and answered questions

from conmttee nenbers. She told the conmttee that UHS
[recently acquired] North Star Behavioral Health System ("North
Star"). Prior to her current position she was the chief

executive officer (CEQO at North Star for the past 18 years.
She said she has been involved daily with/in decisions rel ated
to sending kids outside of Alaska to treatnent centers in the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- May 8, 2003



Lower 48 states. Currently there are 300 to 400 Alaskan
children in residential treatnment centers in the Lower 48. This
has devastating long-term inpacts on these children, on the
famlies, and ultimtely on our state. Last year the House and

Senat e unani nously passed SCR 21. This bill [SB 157] is a
formalization of that resolution to conplete the good work the
| egi sl ature started |ast year. Mental health treatnment and

followup care should be done <close to hone, she said.
Coordi nati on between the residential treatnment provider and the
ongoi ng outpatient treatnent provider is essential. Ms. Cronen
reiterated that it needs to be done in close proximty.
Treatment should involve famlies because the famly's treatnent
is critical to children's long-term success. Fam |y treatnent
that is delivered over the tel ephone is just not as effective as
treatnment that is done face-to-face.

Number 0923

M5. CRONEN told the commttee that the legislature's support of
this bill wll encourage providers |like North Star, Providence,
or any long-termtreatnent provider to expand the nunber of beds
because there wll be a commtnent to keep kids in state.
Val uabl e Medicaid dollars are currently being sent to the Lower
48, and the state is losing jobs. [If North Star were to expand

beds in Alaska to neet the needs of the nunber of kids that are
outside, there would be an additional 400 jobs created. This is

good public policy, she said. It is good for the Kkids'
treatment; it is good for famlies; it keeps Medicaid dollars in
state; and it creates jobs. Ms. Cronen said it is a wn for

everyone, and she encouraged the nmenbers to support the bill
Number 0949

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he would like to discuss the
fiscal note for the record. He pointed out that if the state
sends kids outside of Alaska, the state has to pay for their
education; if the state keeps the kids here at honme, the state
pays for their education. He said he does not know which is
nore or |ess expensive. He asked how the |egislature knows
which is nore expensive, since the fiscal note says zero?

M5. CRONEN responded that she can provide sone firsthand
experience because she is responsible for the UHS facility in
Provo, Uah. She said that 30 percent of the student popul ation
in that facility is Al askan Kkids. The price at Provo Canyon
School is less than the price here, but it does not include
transportation, nor does it take into consideration the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- May 8, 2003



treatnment outconme of the kids. The costs can be slightly |ower,
but when adding in the costs of transportation and education the
price is conparable. She said she believes the departnent
agrees because it has provided a zero fiscal note.

Nunber 1027

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he has had discussions about
prisoner transfers to out-of-state facilities where a nunber of
factors are evaluated including the cost, transportation, and
the opinion that there is a better result if the prisoners are
kept at hone. Is there any evidence that kids that stay in
Al aska do better than those sent out of state?

CHAIR WLSON responded that all the nenbers have to do is think
about how they would feel if it was their child being sent out
of state. Wul d anyone want his/her child to get treatnent
where the parent could not take part? She said she thinks it is
inmportant to look at this legislation as a policy issue, and not

| ook at the finances. She said she believes it is better for
the kids and the famlies to have interaction, go through
treatnment together, and try to work things out. She pointed out

that in sone instances, parents do not even have the noney to go
see the kids. Chair WIson asked the coomittee to look at this
| egislation in that |ight.

Number 1093

SENATOR GREEN pointed to this year's suppl enental budget wherein
there was approximately [$366,000] to [$400,000] supplenental
request for educational fees for out-of-state facilities. She
told the comrttee that there was $663,000 in fiscal year 2002
(FY 02) and it is expected to be $866,000 to $870,000 for FY 03.
The average cost is $5,160 per student for an average of 78.5
education days. Education costs charged by facilities range
from $38 per day to $102 per day in sone of these facilities.
So if the $102 rate is multiplied by the required 180 school
days, one can nmake the leap very quickly that it is nultiples of
what the state is providing for the education of Alaska's
children in state. The proposal is $500,000 for FY 04, but with
the continuing increase of children going out of state, that
nunber will continue to rise and certainly will be nore than
this year's authorized and suppl enmental budget of $900, 000.

Nunber 1179

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA commented that she served on the Finance
Subcommi ttee on Education in 1999 when this issue was | ooked at.
At that tinme it was nore expensive per child partly because the
school district absorbed the students in Al aska, but in cases
where they are sent Qutside, the nobney nmust be sent out. She
said she was shocked at that tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how many of the children that are
sent Qutside are returned.

M5. CRONEN responded that she believes that is a clinical
deci sion based on where the kids are in treatnment and if they
are eligible to be returned.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO comrented that there are sone cases where
it is better to take the child away fromthe famly.

M5. CRONEN replied that it is not just the famlies that the

kids need to be attached to. There are nmany people in
comunities that kids respond to, for instance, their teachers,
school counselor, pastor or mnister, or a neighbor. It is

inmportant to keep kids connected to the healthy people in their
lives. She said if it is not their famlies, and unfortunately
oftentimes it is not, then it is inmportant to nmake sure it is
soneone in their |local conmunity.

Number 1313

SENATOR GREEN asked the nenbers to |ook at page 2, paragraph
(b), on line 3, where it says:

"The departnment shall, on a nonthly basis, evaluate
what types of services are available in the state for
i npati ent psychiatric care"

SENATOR GREEN said on the sane page and paragraph on line 11 it
says that the transfer cannot be detrinental to the person's

heal t h. If that were the case, the student would not be
transferred. For exanpl e, if there 1is an established
therapeutic relationship or a clinical need for the student to
be CQutside, then the student would not be transferred. There

woul d be a conplete review She told the committee the other
factor that needs to be considered in all of this is that there
is space avail able in Al aska.

Nunmber 1359

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATIVE WOLF noved to report CSSB 157(HES) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 157(HES) was
reported out of the House Health, Education and Social Services
St andi ng Conmittee.

The commttee took a brief at-ease from3:40 p.m to 3:41 p.m

HB 292- ABORTI ON: | NFORVED CONSENT; | NFORVATI ON

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 292, "An Act relating to information and services
avai lable to pregnant wonmen and other persons; and ensuring
i nfornmed consent before an abortion nay be perforned, except in
cases of nedical energency.”

CHAIR WLSON told the nenbers that while there are nenbers of
the public that would like to testify on the bill, she wll be
taking up the anendnents to the bill, as the anmendnments may
address sone of the public's concerns.

Number 1438
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Representative Dahl strom sponsor of

HB 292, if she is in agreenent with the amendnents he is
proposi ng before the commttee.

Nunber 1464

REPRESENTATI VE NANCY DAHLSTROV] Al aska State Legislature, as
sponsor of HB 292, spoke to the anmendnents of the bill and
answered questions from the nenbers. In response to

Representative Seaton question, she responded that she is in
agreenent with the anendnents.

Nunmber 1518

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page 1, line 9,
After "professional conduct” delete the words
in acritical area of practice

Page 1, line 13,
After "on the Internet" insert the words

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- May 8, 2003



that is reviewed and approved by the State Medical
Board and

Page 2, lines 1 and 2,
After "private choices" delete
bet ween permanent and life affecting alternatives

Page 2, line 3,

After "information site" insert the words

that is reviewed and approved by the State Medical
Board

Page 2, lines 8 through 10,
Delete all material

Page 2, line 19,
After "agencies" delete
and and insert ,

Page 2, line 21
After "(B)" insert
agenci es, services,

Page 2, line 22
After "and services" insert

and

Page 2, 23,

Create a new sub-section that shall read

{C} agenci es, servi ces, clinics and facilities

designed to assist or provide contraceptive options
and counsel i ng;

Page 2, line 30,

After "abortions services;" insert

and the circunstantial criteria for the availability
of nmedi cal assistance benefits for contraception;

Page 3, line 12,

After "objective nonjudgnental, and" insert

that is reviewed and approved by the State Medical
Board and

Page 3, line 1,

After "information that" insert

is reviewed and approved by the State Medical Board
and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- May 8, 2003



Page 3, line 20

After "unbiased information” insert

that is reviewed and approved by the State Medical
Board

Page 3, line 24,
Create a new sub-section that shall read

(9) cont ai ns obj ecti ve, unbi ased and
conprehensive information that IS reviewed and
approved by the State Medical Board on different types
of available contraceptive choices and the nedical
risk and possible conplications comonly associated
with each nethod as well as the possible psychol ogi cal
effects that have been associated wth using
contracepti ves.

Page 5, line 16,
Del et e
at | east 24 hours before the abortion procedure,

Page 6, line 16,

After "this section" insert

that do not violate the woman's privacy by including
her name or any anot her [ ot her] i dentifying
i nformation.

Page 6, line 23,
After "whether the" insert
uni dentified

Nunber 1523
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA obj ected to the notion.

CHAIR WLSON told the commttee that she wuld Ilike to
i ndividually discuss each change to the bill

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 1, line 9, after the words
"professional conduct”, delete the words "in critical area of
practice.” He pointed out that the State of Al aska regul ates
all of those professional standards of conduct.

CHAIR WLSON asked Representative Seaton to clarify whether
those words are in existing statute.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that this is a new bill [new
| aw] .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that [on page one] line 13, after the
words "on the Internet”, insert the words "that is reviewed and
approved by the State Medical Board and". This | anguage is

inserted so that there is a standard for scientific and unbi ased
i nfornmati on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that on page 2, lines 1 and 2, after
the words "private choices”, delete the words "between pernmnent
and life affecting alternatives".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that on [page 2] line 3, after the

words "information site", insert the words "that is reviewed and
approved by the State Medical Board". Representative Seaton
asked if he could nmake a change to that anmendnent. He said that

he wants to make sure the sanme wording is used as that in the
previ ous section. So instead of the wording "after informtion
site", it wll be "after information site on the Internet", and
then insert the words "that is reviewed and approved by the
St ate Medi cal Board".

Nunber 1710

CHAIR WLSON comrented that this is amending the anendnent. She
said on page 2, line 3, of the anendnent, after the words
"information site", she will insert the words "on the Internet”.

CHAIR WLSON asked if there was any objection to anending the
anendnent . There being no objection, she announced that the
anendnent to Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that on page 2, lines 8-10 would be
del et ed.

Nunmber 1735

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked what is the purpose of that anendnent.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that the information is out of
context with the other findings. He said there has been
considerable testinony on both sides of the issue, and the
purpose is to show that there are findings on this and not to
try to weight the bill one way or another.

Number 1798

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that on page 2, line 19, after the

word "agencies", delete the word "and" and insert ",

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the next change is on page 2, line
19, after the word "services", insert the following: ", clinics
and facilities".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 2, line 21, after "(B)",
i nsert "agencies, services,".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 2, line 22, after the words
"and services", insert the word "and".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 2, line 23, a new subsection
will be created that will read as follows: "(C) agencies,
services, clinics and facilities designed to assist or provide
contraceptive options and counseling;".

Nunmber 1869

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked for clarification on this |anguage.
s this wording an effort to address organi zations |ike Planned
Par ent hood?

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that is correct. It would cover
Pl anned Parenthood or other organizations that nay need to be
covered.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 2, line 30, after the words
"abortions services;", insert the follow ng |anguage: "and the
circunstanti al criteria for the availability of medi cal
assi stance benefits for contraception;”.

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that a word was added that is not on
the anmendnent docunent provided to the conmttee. The word
"and" was added.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that it was an error in reading
t he anendnent. He had not intended to add anything to the
amendnent .

Nunber 1938
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 3, line 12, after the words

"obj ective, nonjudgnental, and", insert the follow ng |anguage:
"that is reviewed and approved by the State Medical Board and".

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that this |anguage is to ensure
that the information that is portrayed is scientific, accurate,
and consi stent throughout the bill

CHAIR WLSON asked about the next portion of the anmendnent
because the nunbering appears to go back up to line 1.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that is a typographical error
It should have read page 3, line 15 [not line 1].

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 3, line 15, after the words
"information that", insert "that is reviewed and approved by the
State Medical Board and".

Number 2039

CHAIR WLSON noved to adopt a conceptual anendnent to change the
wording from page 3, line "1" to read page 3, line "15". There
being no objection, she announced that the anendnent to
Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 3, line 20, after the words
"unbi ased information", insert the words "that is reviewed and
approved by the State Medi cal Board".

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 3, line 24, a new subsection

is created which reads: "(9) contains objective, unbiased and
conprehensive information that is reviewed and approved by the
State Medi cal board on di fferent types of avai l abl e

contraceptive choices and the nedical risk and possible
conplications comonly associated with each nmethod as well as
the possible psychological effects that have been associated
W th using contraceptives."

CHAIR WLSON comented that this subsection is infornation

related to pregnancy and pregnancy alternatives that the
departnment shall maintain on the Internet in printable form

Nunber 2130

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the previous sentence should end
in"; and" to nmake it accurate.

CHAIR WLSON noved to anend the anmendnent on page 3, line 23, by

deleting the "." and insert ";". There being no objection, the
anendnent to Anendnent 1 was adopt ed.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- May 8, 2003



Number 2172

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked for sonme discussion on the new
subsection where it provides for the State Medical Board' s

approval of the information. The bill also allows for the
Departnent of Health and Social Services, D vision of Public
Health to review this information. He asked if the purpose of

the anendnent is to have two reviews of the | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that the information wll be
created by the departnent and reviewed by the State Medical
Boar d.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if anyone has talked with the State
Medi cal Board on this. He said he is curious whether this
conplies with its scope of authority. He suggested that should
be expl ored.

Nunber 2253

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 5, line 16, the words "at
| east 24 hours before the abortion procedure,” are del eted.

CHAIR WLSON comrented that this would delete the required 24-
hour waiting period.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that is correct.
Number 2270

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Representative Seaton what the
rational e is behind this change.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the testinony heard in an
earlier hearing is that the waiting period would vastly increase
the cost and delay other patients from receiving nedical
services because of the limted nunber of appoi nt ment s
avai |l abl e.

Number 2272

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM told the commttee that in speaking
with Senator Dyson, who is the cosponsor of the conpanion bil

in the other body [SB 30], they are confortable with shortening
the time period to address sone of the issues the nedical
community has expressed. However, they do believe there needs

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- May 8, 2003



to be a waiting period, contenplation period, or an absorption-
of -i nformati on period. Representati ve Dahl strom said she does
not support taking any tinme limt out of the bill

Number 2304

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL conmmented that this wll be a two-day
process from the time of contact. There are early-term
abortions that could happen on the first day. The further along
in pregnancy, the nore tinme is required. Renoving this |anguage
creates sone pressure in meking the decision for those who have
early-term pregnancies, and in his view this is an inforned-

consent issue. One size does not fit all for the time limt.
There needs to be nore work done in this section of the bill, he
concl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that he has no objection to a
contenpl ation tine. He said he believes to force soneone who
has come in from the Bush to overnight an extra night creates a
hardship. As long as the contenplation tinme is short enough so
that the patient could have the procedure during the sane
appointment, it would be hel pful.

Number 2374

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM comrented that when the anendnents
bei ng presented by Representative Seaton are conplete, she has
an anendnent that she would like to present to the conmttee
t hat addresses sone of the issues being discussed today and sone
of the issues raised in Dr. Mirphy's testinony yesterday. She
stated that nost of the wonen have the abortion scheduled a few
weeks ahead of tine. If there were a printable signature page
on the web site, that would address this issue.

TAPE 03-41, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he does not want to slow down the
di scussi on of these anendnents.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 5, line 16, after the words
"this section", insert the following: "that do not violate the
wonman's privacy by including her nane or any other identifying
i nformation."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said on page 6, line 23, after the words
"whet her the", insert the word "unidentified".

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that the purpose of this change is to
ensure that these reports are kept confidential and do not
contain any identifying information. This |anguage assures that
the law foll ows the federal guidelines.

Nunber 2314

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said she is confortable with all of the
changes with the exception of the one on page 5, |ine 16, which
del etes the 24-hour waiting period.

CHAIR WLSON suggested that the commttee accept Anmendnent 1

with the agreenent that there will be a change in the |anguage
to address Representative Dahlstroms concern about the renpbva
of the 24-hour waiting period. There being no objection, she

announced that Amendnment 1 was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON brought attention to Amendnent 2, |abeled
23-L.S0867\H. 1, Lauterbach, 5/7/03, which read:

Page 4, line 24, follow ng "woman":

Insert "and the pregnant woman's estate, and only
to the pregnant woman and the pregnant woman's
estate,”

Fol | owi ng "danages":

I nsert "caused by the violation"

CHAIR WLSON |abeled the foregoing Amendnment 2. She asked
Representative Seaton to explain it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the commttee that the purpose of
Amendnent 2 is to ensure that it is clear that the wonman and her
estate are the entities that wuld be entitled to this
presunptive infornmation. This is to denonstrate a rebuttable
presunption and that this accrues to a wonan and her estate and
not a third party. For exanple, Geenpeace, Right to Life, a
church, or soneone not involved would not be able to cone in and
assert for the woman, and get this information.

Nunber 2184
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he believes there needs to be a
sponsor statenent and a sectional analysis on this bill. Si nce

there are so many anmendnents [changes] all at one tinme, he asked
if there is a sunmary of what the amendnents acconplish

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he was trying to follow
the rationale on this anendnent. He said he is concerned
whether this is |egal.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that the Legislative Legal and
Research Services drafted this Ilanguage to nmake sure the
anmendnent is correct. This change is only to prevent a third
party fromfiling a lawsuit on soneone's behalf that is not the
woman or her estate.

Number 2113
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL renoved his objection to the anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked if the Legislative Legal and
Research Services tal ked about parental consent being invol ved.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that they did not talk about that.
But he said he assunmes it is the person who has consent and the
interested parties. This could be researched further by
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services to ensure that situation
i s covered.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM responded that she wll follow up on
t hat issue.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL reiterated that he has renoved his
obj ecti on.

Nunmber 2045

CHAIR WLSON said that wthout objection, Anendnent 2 was
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON responded to Representative (Gatto's
request for a sponsor statenment on the anendnents by saying that

this is a very conplex bill and it could be a very controversial
subj ect . The intent of these anmendnents is to take as nuch of
the enotional fabric out of the bill so that it will have broad
support. This can be acconplished by inserting scientific

evi dence, review of that evidence, and assurance that it does
not restrict a woman's right to access information and does not
remove confidentiality from nedi cal procedure; then there can be

broad support for this bill. Representative Seaton sunmarized
his statenment by saying his intent is to aid the sponsor in
getting a bill that can have broad support.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- May 8, 2003



Nunmber 1990

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that he agrees with a lot of
what Representative Seaton says; however, he is not a scholar on
the anmendnents that were presented. He reiterated his concern
that the Departnent of Health and Social Services already
provides many brochures on a variety of health and wonen's
i ssues. None of them to his know edge, need to be reviewed by
the State Medical Board before they are provided to the public.
He wonders if this bill is starting a precedent and wonders if
that is what the legislature wants to do. He told the conmttee
that at this point he is not prepared to agree to that. He said
he would |i ke to take that portion out of the bill

CHAIR WLSON asked if the Departnent of Health and Socia
Services is available to address this question.

CHAIR WLSON told the conmttee that because of the nmany changes
to the bill, she is inclined to hold the bill and have the
commttee review the commttee substitute. She asked the
sponsor and other nenbers of the commttee what their thoughts
are on this.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM responded that she would be fine wth
t hat . She said she does have a question for the departnent.
She said she knows the departnent nakes nmany publications
available to the public. For exanple, the departnent provides
brochures about fetal alcohol syndrome and informational flyers
about snoking while pregnant. She would like to know if those
brochures are reviewed by the State Medical Board or if the
departnment has full control over those publications.

Nunmber 1860

JOHN SHERWOOD, Unit Manager, Division of Medical Assistance,
Department of Health and Social Services, testified on HB 292
and responded to questions from the conmttee. He said he
cannot claim to be famliar with all of the brochures and
panphl ets that the departnent provides; however, he wanted the
commttee to be aware that this information cones froma variety
of sources. Some things are witten in-house, and sone things
are provided to the departnent by different federal agencies
that are in the business of providing this information in
supporting states. He said he is not aware of anything going to
the State Medical Board or some other in-state board for
approval, but there could be sone instance when that has
occurred that he is not aware of.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- May 8, 2003



Nunmber 1837

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that the question is how to
verify scientifically appropriate and accurate information.
Wthin the departnent's scope of work there nust be instances
when a variety of different brochures or panphlets nust be
verified for accuracy. Does the departnent have a process where
the information 1is examned for accuracy, scientifically
accurate, and et cetera?

MR, SHERWOOD stated that is not wthin his particular scope of
wor k; however, he assumes the Division of Public Health nedica
prof essionals would review the information and determne that it
is accurate before it would be dissem nated. He said he is
confortabl e nmaki ng that statenent.

Nunber 1797

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that |ast year the commttee
tal ked about this issue wth the head of the Division of Public
Heal t h. The director had very firm views on this issue and
assured t he commttee that t he di vi sion coul d craft
scientifically accurate information. The doctors who are hired
to work in the Division of Public Health are quite capable, he
sai d. Representative Coghill said that is his reason for
bringing this question to the commttee. Representative Coghill
agreed with Chair Wlson's idea about holding the bill so that a
few phone calls could be nmade to confirm and clarify sone
i nformation. He said he 1is interested in seeing this
| egi sl ati on pass.

Number 1750

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA commented that she has several questions,
some of which will be handled in the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee. Her concern is that this bill would appear to be
creating obstacles to abortion, which is unconstitutional. She
asked if this bill is affected by the new HPAA [Health
| nsurance Portability and Accountability Act] rules that have to
do with confidentiality. Some people she has talked to say
these rules are much nore conplicated than the state
under st ands.

CHAIR WLSON stated that she will request that the Departnent of

Health and Social Services look into that question before
Tuesday, when the bill wll be heard again.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said that those that have been waiting to
testify on line may contribute things that the cormmittee has not
t hought of.

CHAIR WLSON announced that she will be closing the discussions
soon. However, once the comrittee substitute is avail able, the

commttee will send a copy of it to anyone in the comrittee room
or on line who would like to see it. She apol ogi zed to anyone
who has been waiting to testify, but said she believes the
anendnents have changed the bill significantly and it is likely
many of the public questions have been addressed in those
changes. Chair WIlson said public testinony will be taken on
Tuesday.

CHAIR WLSON said copies will be sent to the nmenbers prior to
t he next neeting. If any nenbers wish to offer amendnents, she
asked that they talk with the sponsor and provide a copy of
proposed anmendnents prior to the neeting.

Nunber 1604

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA pointed out that sonme of the people who
wish to testify could have cone to neetings tw ce, taken tine

off of work, or arranged for babysitters, all in an effort to
testify.
Number 1593

CHAIR WLSON agreed with Representative G ssna. She asked if
there is anyone on line who would find it difficult to return to
the hearing on Tuesday.

Nunber 1571

MYRNA GARDNER, testified in opposition to HB 292 and answered
guestions fromthe commttee. She questioned that the intent of
the bill is to provide an unbiased information web site for
wonen. She offered her belief that in the state of Al aska,
according to the Denali Comm ssion, Internet technology, which
is revolutionizing conmmunication in urban areas of Alaska, is
nonexi stent in rural Al aska. The services are not there and the
cost is astronomcal to residents, so they do not have it
avai |l abl e. She asked who this information would benefit. MVs.
Gardner told the commttee the language in the bill indicates
that it is to be unbiased and should provide alternative options
to abortion, but in subsection 2(a) and subsection 6, this

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- May 8, 2003



| anguage is not unbiased. She said this section describes the
fetal devel opnent of an unborn child from fertilization to ful

term including photographs. This bill is designed to scold
wonen and to intimdate them she said. She stated that she
believes this bill says woman are not conpetent or capable

enough to nmake this decision on their own or that wonen are not
intelligent enough to go out there, get information, and nake
that decision rationally wth their famly, preacher, or
physi ci an. Ms. Gardner said these are the reasons why the
| egi slature wants to mandate legislation to create a web site
and force physicians to prove that they have given their
patients this information.

M5. GARDNER said that 20 years ago or nore, people did not talk
about abortions. Wnen did not have a |lot of choices and they
surely did not have people they could speak to. Now there are a
| ot of services out there. The information is on television

radio, and in the print nedia. [ Abortion] is not an issue that
is not spoken of or a procedure that people are unaware of.
Everyone knows about it. Ms. Gardner pointed out that the
situation has changed. This is another reason why she believes
the State of Al aska does not believe these wonen are conpetent
enough to nmake this decision on their own. She said she
respects the sponsor's intent to nmake sure there is information
out there, but that can be achieved by contributing to
organi zations that do that. She said she does not believe it is
necessary to provide a state regulation [l aw.

M5. GARDNER said that she has a question about the bill on page

4, line 27, where it talks about "a preponderance of the
evidence that a person gave to a woman a witten copy of the
material maintained on the Internet.” She reported that

according to the new HPAA law, no information regarding a
person's nedical records is to be given to anyone wthout
written consent. This bill does not even pay any respect to
that law and would violate it, she suggested. She stated the
law [HIPAA] is only as good as its enforcenent. The only way a
doctor can prove conpliance is by having sone state enpl oyee go
to the doctor and ask hinlher to prove conpliance. How is the
information validated? It neans soneone is |looking at private
medi cal records, which violates their privacy. M. Gardner said
this bill is not the answer and asked the conmttee to not |et
this bill pass.

Number 1300

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what her affiliations are wth
respect to this issue.

M5. GARDNER responded that she has no affiliations and is
speaking only for herself as an active registered voter.

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA commented that the average citizen usually
does not conme in and testify. Usually it is someone
representing a group. She asked how sophisticated the wonen are
who seek abortions in her circle.

M5. GARDNER replied that the people she knows are al nost
overwhel med with the technology today. This issue is sensitive,
personal, and private. Because of the political sensitivity to
this issue, there is a great deal of print nedia available. She
has had famly nenbers and friends who have talked about
aborti on. Now sex education is taught to children. Most wonen
are high school graduates and can research an issue; it is not
li ke 50 years ago when wonen did not know what to do. She said
wonen are conpetent and capabl e of meki ng deci si ons now.

Number 1172

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said if the anmount of information is
overwhel m ng, and the wonen are conpetent and capable, then why
are there so many teen pregnancies at the high school |evel.

Nunmber 1136

M5. GARDNER responded that it is not just wonen's fault, but she
agrees that wonen should take protection, and so should nen.
She said she does not have an answer to Representative Gatto's
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that Representative @Gtto's
guestion is a good one. There were a rash of pregnancies in
Homer for several years; and those girls wanted to get pregnant
because it was the thing to do at the tinme, he surm sed. It
astounds him and others. They were having babies in high school
and these were not accidents. It was the rage for a while. Wy
sone naeke these choices is confounding to us, he said.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA said that a recent report showed that
births to teens shows Al aska behind the national average. At
one tine Alaska led the nation, but that turned around. Al aska
is doing better.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- May 8, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE  GATTO  poi nted out t he contradiction in

i nformati on: Ms. Gar dner said that Al aska's wonen are
overwhel med with information, but earlier she said in the Bush
there is not good access to information. He said he actually

believes that there is good access in the Bush because Al aska is
the nost Internet-connected state in the country and it is
avai |l abl e. He commented that M. Gardner is one of the few
people he has heard say that the problem is too much
i nformation.

M5. GARDNER said that the conmon citizen does not have access to
the Internet in the Bush. The cost to use the Internet is
expensi ve; however, there is television, radio, and the printed
word. She believes this bill still says wonen are not conpetent
to nmake this decision. She disagrees with this assunption, she
told nenbers. This bill is not about new information, but old
and bi ased i nformati on, and about saying wonen are not capabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO responded that he does not think wonen are
not capabl e. He said that if soneone goes to a store and buys
anything, there are labels that go on and on and on; that does
not nmean that the storeowner or the nanufacturer thinks the
consuner is inconpetent and therefore has to be told a lot of
i nformation. It is sinmply another source of information. He
asked whether Ms. Gardner would object to a |abel on a can that
specifies what vitamns are contained in it, for exanple, that
mlk has vitamin D, and therefore it inplies that the consuner
is inconpetent to find this information hinself or herself and
thus would be insulted it is on a mlk container.

Nunber 0874

M5. GARDNER said she would not find that insulting. She said
she believes know edge is powerful. But what this bill is
saying is that it is mandatory that the physician prove that
beyond a preponderance of the evidence he/she has given this
specific information to the patient before the procedure can be
done. Ms. Gardner stated that this is not additional
information; it is mandatory. If this bill said this web site
is available to be helpful, she said she would say thank you
but this is mandatory.

Number 0770
BOB JOHNSON, M D., testified via teleconference in opposition to

HB 292. He told the commttee that during his last ten years of
medi cal practice he perforned approximately 70 abortions per

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- May 8, 2003



year for a total of 700 abortions. He said he is thoroughly
famliar with the procedure, the risks, and the results. He
told the conmttee he is retired and has nothing to gain by
pronoting abortion. He comented that Senator Dyson's testinony
before the commttee cautioned the nenbers to note that there
will not be any reference to the term "unborn child" by those
opposing the bill. Dr. Johnson said this clearly indicates his
bias with respect to abortion and his obvious conflict of
interest. He said he thought this was to be a hearing and not a

di scussion of the bill and testinony of the commttee in favor
of the bill, and it soon becane apparent that it was. Because
of this, only tw individuals were able to testify that
af t ernoon, he conpl ai ned. Some of those who were not able to

testify were not able to come this afternoon.

DR. JOHNSON told the committee his purpose for testifying is to
see that obstacles are not placed in front of wonen who for

multiple reasons feel they need an abortion. Each of his
patients was provided with options available to themin addition
to an abortion. Each was told as much as she wanted to know
about the procedure, risks, and outcone. Each was schedul ed for
a followup visit two weeks after the procedure. He said his
finding supports Dr. Mirphy's findings. He said that the

commttee made a big fuss about her use of the term "term nation
of pregnancy”, which he suspects was her attenpt to be sensitive
to patients' feelings about the term "abortion" because those
who are in favor of aright to life have nmade it a nasty word.

DR. JOHNSON told the commttee that his findings show that the
risks are considerably | ess than what sonme are led to believe by

those who oppose abortion. For instance, only two of his
patients experi enced post - abortion depr essi on requiring
treatment, and both of these patients recovered. Dr. Johnson

said this is less than the incidence of postpartum depression.
None of his patients |ost enough blood to require a transfusion,
two of his patients had post-abortion infections that responded
pronptly to treatnent, and those that so desired went on to have
norrmal pregnanci es. He said he saw no fertility problens
associated with abortion. He told the commttee that he does
not believe politicians have any business telling patients what
they must know, in spite of what advice they receive or from

whom It is an insult to the intelligence of wonen who, in his
opi nion, know exactly what they want to know and if encouraged
will make sure their physician tells them

Nunmber 0560

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- May 8, 2003



DR. JOHNSON asked if the commttee really thinks physicians are
not famliar with their responsibility to explain the options,

ri sks, benefits, and details of any treatnent. This |egislation
pl aces nore obstacles in the path of those who need an abortion.
This | egislation, along with nmuch inaccurate publicity,

conplicates the decision and tends to nmake wonen who elect to
have an abortion feel quilty. He said he thinks the occasiona
suicide he has heard nentioned is a direct result of this
[inaccurate publicity]. Dr. Johnson asked the committee, on
behal f of wonmen who cannot raise a child, for any reason, to
reject this legislation and any simlar |egislation.

Number 0520

GENENEI VA PEARSON testified via teleconference in opposition to
HB 292. She told the committee that she listened to Dr.
Mur phy's testinony and believes that physicians are taking care
of the concerns the commttee has. M. Pearson said that if the

commttee believed legislation was necessary, Dr. Mrphy's
testinmony should nmake it clear that the bill is not necessary.
Governnment should not interfere with a relationship between
physi ci an and patient. She said that the wonen who conpl ai ned

to Representative Dahlstrom about their choices need to take
responsi bility and not bl anme soneone el se for their actions.

Nunber 0401

KAREN VOSBURGH, Executive Director, Alaska Right to Life,
testified via teleconference in support of HB 292. She told the
commttee that she represents not only herself, but also the
50,000 people in their database. M. Vosburgh said that it is a
fact that abortion leads to physical and psychol ogi cal damages

to wonen. Abortionist do not like to call it a child, but that
is exactly what it is. The description of the pre-born baby is
relevant to a wonan's decision about abortion. To claim that

this information does not pertain directly to the abortion
procedure is to deny any possibility that a second human being
is involved. Wnmen deserve to know exactly what is being
renoved before they nmake that decision. The doctor, nurse, or
counsel or who protects the woman seeking the abortion from the
facts to keep them from anxiety or gquilt, has made a noral
deci sion on the woman's behal f, she said, and that is conpletely
unaccept abl e.

Nunmber 0318

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- May 8, 2003



M5. VOSBURGH said everyone has heard the reference of the pre-
born baby as tissue or sonme term that would not give any
humanity to the baby within it. Abortionists say they fully
inform their patients before commtting the abortions; however

Ms. Vosburgh told mnenbers, nearly 80 percent of the wonen
surveyed by the Elliot Institute said that they were actively
m sinformed by their counselors prior to their abortion. In
every one of the thousands of <cases docunented, a ful

expl anation and possible risks of conplications were not given
by abortion providers. Wen questions were asked, answers about

ri sks were understated, m sconstrued, or avoided. Rat her than
addressing risks, alternatives, fetal developnent, the abortion
counseling consisted of birth control techniques. This is
precisely why there needs to be infornmed-consent |aws. Wnen
have the right to know, and a lot of them are not getting the
i nformation. Wnen rely on their doctors for accurate
information, and they are not getting it, she asserted. That
does not apply across the board, but in all the research she has
done, it applied to a great percentage of wonen. It is very

necessary that wonen have this know edge. Ms. Vosburgh pointed
out that those providing the counseling have a huge conflict of
interest, considering that they receive paynent for "commtting"
abortions on those they counsel.

Number 0212

M5. VOSBURGH told the committee of an exanple in Red River
Abortion dinic, where she said a counselor provided the
followng false statenents to her clients:

Anti -abortion activists say havi ng an abortion
increases the risk of developing breast cancer and
endangers future chil dbeari ng. None of these clains
are supported by nedical research or established
medi cal organi zati ons.

M5. VOSBURGH stated that this abortionist should not be passing
out information like this. If this person were to research the
evi dence about breast cancer, future childbearing conplications,
and a huge psychol ogi cal inpact that nost wonen have, she would
not be providing this information. The hornonal disruption that
occurs when a wonan's pregnancy is artificially interrupted
| eaves the breast with an abnormally high nunber of cells
vul nerable to cancer, she told nenbers. The first study done on
abortion as a risk factor for breast cancer was published in
1971. That report showed that abortion appears to cause
substantial increase and risk of subsequent breast cancer.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- May 8, 2003



Al nost two decades later, 15 or 14 Anerican studies bear out
this early warning. But to this day, wonen are not inforned
about this significant health threat. She told the conmttee it
is time for the American people to decide for thensel ves whet her
the evidence warrants disclosure. It is time the wonmen in
Al aska get protection because the abortionists providing the
services are not informng them She told the commttee she has

a lot nmore information and will send it on to the commttee.
Nunber 0090

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO announced that Chair WIson had left the
nmeeting and that he will be chairing the neeting. He asked if
anyone else on |ine would like to testify. [ There was no
response. |

TAPE 03-42, SIDE A

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA commented that those wishing to testify
via teleconference often need a few mnutes before they can be
hear d.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO announced that Chair WIson had returned to
t he neeti ng.

Number 0031

CHAIR WLSON asked Representative Dahlstrom to sunmarize any
further statenent she m ght have on HB 292.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM comented that the information Ms.

Vosburgh provided in testinony is in the bill packets. She
t hanked those that testified and said that it takes a l|ot of
courage to talk about sensitive issues. Representati ve
Dahl strom said there are comments nade in testinony by M.
Gardner that bother her and she wants to address those. MVs.
Gardner had said this bill states that wonen are not conpetent.
Representative Dahlstrom said she absolutely does not believe
that is the case. She said she operates on the true feeling

that information is power and it does not matter what it is,
whether it was the exanple given previously about reading |abels
in the grocery store, or staying current on all types of nedica
information, health information, the best way to build a hone,
or any area where there is an effort to gain as nuch information
as possible. Representative Dahlstrom stated for the record
that it is absolutely untrue that her intent in filing this bill
was based on her belief that wonen are not conpetent.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- May 8, 2003



Nunmber 0186

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM told the commttee that she had an
opportunity to speak with a woman who had an abortion 30 years
ago. It just canme up in a conversation. The woman told her
that it alnost destroyed her life and that she had years and
years of counseling. She said she does not know the particulars
on this, but that this is a woman who has been dealing with this
for a long tine. As a previous testifier [Ms. Pearson] said,
i ndi vidual s nust be responsible for their actions and there are

consequences for every action that is taken in life. That is
why it is extrenely inportant that there is as nuch information
as possible, so that all wonen can have this information.

Representative Dahlstrom told the commttee of a woman who is
very close to her, who had an abortion and her comments were,

"Why can't this be |like when | go to the store and | buy
sonething and | decide | don't want it and | go back to the
store and | return it and it is done." Buyer's renorse is a
sinple thing that is experienced by many individuals. For

sonething that is so critical that affects wonen's bodies and
affects them for a very long period of tinme, erring on the side
of caution cannot be bad in any way, shape, or form

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM addressed the coments and facts that
were stated earlier from a publication Representative C ssna
has. She said she is interested in |ooking at those facts. She
agreed that Al aska used to be the nunber-one state in the nation
in teenage pregnancies, unwed pregnancies, and unwanted
pregnancies. Wiile the nunbers are down, her personal belief is
that a big reason that those nunbers are down is due to the many
abortions that are taking care of those pregnancies. She said
t hat she does not have the nunbers in front of her now, but wll
have them avail able for the next hearing. She recalled that the
nunbers were very alarmng and that they |isted the nunber of
abortions perfornmed on young wonen between the ages of 12 and
15, 15 and 17, and then 18 and above. It was broken down by
inside the Minicipality of Anchorage and outside the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage.

Nunber 0438

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said that she goes back to the thought
that information is power. If a wonan has nade that very
personal choice, she will respect that choice. She said that in
her life when there are very inportant decisions to nake,

information provided to her helps her make the best decision

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- May 8, 2003



possi ble. People all deal with the consequences of our actions.
The intent of this legislation is to provide information so that
when people make choices, they are informed, and they know
exactly what they are doing. Then they can nove on with their
life and have a happy productive life.

Nunmber 0501

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA r esponded t hat she agr ees W th
Representative Dahlstroms testinony that one can never get
enough informati on and she supports that effort. However, since
many of the people who probably are seeking this procedure are
people well over 35 years old, why include the requirenment to
check to see if they did their homework. These people are
i ndi viduals who have done all the things expected in being
responsi bl e adul ts.

Nunmber 0560

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM replied that she is 45 years old, and
has been through many experiences in life. However, she
continues to be anazed at all the things she does not know, and
all the things that she has not experienced because these
situations have not been a part of her personal life.

Representative Dahl strom said as she | earns and becones aware of
ot her experiences, it makes her a better person, and it makes
her nore accepting of other people. Under st andi ng different
ci rcunstances helps to shape who she is because she gains that
information. \Wen soneone is over 21, he/she is responsible for
certain things; for exanple, nost people by the tinme they are in
their 30s or 40s have purchased a honme. The intent of this bil
is not to state that soneone is not able to neke a good
decision, but maybe it is the first tine that person has had to
make this decision.

CHAI R WLSON announced that will be the end of testinony on HB
292 until next week. [HB 292 was held over.]

ADJ QURNVENT
Nunber 0702
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:00 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -32- May 8, 2003



